
Minutes             

 
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITIES AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Tuesday, May 23, 2006 – 4:00 p.m. 

YCUA Administration Building 
2777 State Road 

Ypsilanti, MI  48198-9112 
 
 
 

Members Present:  Larry J. Doe, Edward B. Koryzno, Jr., J. Ray Scott, and Philip W. Wagner. 

Members Absent:  Mark Namatevs 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Doe called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING:  Motion by Wagner to receive and file 
the minutes of the April 25, 2006 meeting.  Support by Koryzno.  In favor: All.  
Opposed: None.  (Motion carried.) 

3. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Request to Approve- New Deferred Compensation Vendor - Larry R. 

Thomas 

Mr. Thomas advised the Board that the Authority has offered a Deferred 
Compensation Plan to its employees for many years.  He indicated that the 
director of the Authority is the plan trustee for the program and a 
consultant group is hired for plan administration.  Mr. Thomas also 
explained that, over the years, YCUA has changed the plan administrator 
several times.  He pointed out that the current administrator is National 
Benefit Consultations located in West Bloomfield. 

Mr. Thomas explained that YCUA has been experiencing some 
inconsistencies of services by its consultants and has recently investigated 
other providers of this service.  He further advised that, additionally, a 
periodic review of investment choices and fees is appropriate.  Mr. 
Thomas stated that staff requested assistance from YCUA’s auditing firm 
of Rehmann Robson in this investigation and Doug Barber assisted in 
identifying potential providers as well as evaluating the various programs.  
He acknowledged that YCUA identified four providers and had 
presentations from each.  Mr. Thomas confirmed that staff met with the 
Personnel Committee on Friday, May 19th and examined programs from 



BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
May 23, 2006 
Page 2 
 
 
 

National Benefits, the Hartford Company, Nationwide Insurance 
Company, and International City County Management Association 
(ICMA). 

He explained that, as the plan trustee, he has a fiduciary responsibility to 
provide the employees with the most beneficial Deferred Compensation 
Plan.  Mr. Thomas pointed out that it is his belief that changing the plan 
providers to the ICMA-RC group will be in the best interests of the 
employees and of the Authority.  He also stated that this plan is paid 
through employee contributions and there is no cost to the Authority. 

Mr. Thomas advised the Board that ICMA-RC offers a group of 
investments through the Vantage Trust Corporation.  He indicated that 
they offer much more extensive education of employees on the programs 
and retirement planning.  Mr. Thomas also explained that ICMA-RC will 
pay the surrender charges that participants with the current investment 
providers may be charged to transfer their assets to ICMA-RC. 

Mr. Thomas directed the Board’s attention to a resolution that will adopt 
the deferred compensation plan and trust for ICMA-RC Retirement 
Corporation.  He pointed out that the assets of the program will be 
invested in the Vantage Trust Company and ICMA-RC will act as the 
administrator of the plan.  Mr. Thomas explained that he can continue to 
be the managing trustee of the program or the Board can appointment 
anyone they wish to that position. 

Mr. Thomas recommended approval of the request to retain ICMA-RC as 
the Authority’s new Deferred Compensation Plan vendor pending YCUA 
attorney review. 

Edward B. Koryzno, Jr. concurred with the recommendation and advised 
that he has been a satisfied member of the ICMA-RC plan for over 25 
years in three different cities. 

Motion by Koryzno to approve the request to retain ICMA-RC as the 
Authority’s new Deferred Compensation Plan vendor pending YCUA 
attorney review.  Support by Wagner.  In favor: All.  Opposed: None. 
(Motion carried) 

B. Request to Approve – Change Order No. 1 re: Bridge Road Water 
Treatment Plant Demolition Project - T. Michael Jessee 

Mr. Jessee reminded the Board that YCUA recently signed an agreement 
with Stantec Engineering for design and engineering services for the 
Bridge Road Water Plant Demolition Project.  He indicated that the 
proposal will supply the Authority with bidding specifications for the 
project.  Mr. Jessee also explained that, previously, a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment was performed by AKT Peerless through 
Ypsilanti Township and Washtenaw County.  He pointed out that Stantec 



BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
May 23, 2006 
Page 3 
 
 
 

has identified two potential areas of contamination not identified in the 
Phase I Assessment.  Mr. Jessee explained that Stantec is recommending 
supplemental sampling of materials suspected to contain asbestos-and 
lead-based paint.  He acknowledged that this additional sampling will 
assist in developing the proper bidding specifications. 

Mr. Jessee confirmed that the demolition bid specifications will be most 
accurate and useful if all potential contaminants have been identified.  He 
explained that Stantec is requesting an additional $8,337.50 to perform 
this service. 

Mr. Jessee recommended approval of Change Order No. 1 of the Stantec 
contract, bringing the new contract total to $87,322.50. 

Motion by Wagner to approve Change Order No. 1 of the Stantec contract, 
bringing the new contract total to $87,322.50.  Support by Koryzno.  In 
favor: All.  Opposed: None. (Motion carried) 

C. Request to Approve Change Order No. 28 re: Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Expansion/Improvements Project - T. Michael Jessee 

Mr. Jessee directed the Board’s attention to Change Order No. 28 for the 
WWTP expansion/improvements project as well as his memo regarding 
the change order.  He indicated that the change order covers several items 
addressed in his memo and represents an increase in the project cost in the 
amount of $168,445.  Mr. Jessee also explained that this change order 
brings total changes to $4,033,755.  He pointed out that the change order 
addresses items that were discovered during the project as well as changes 
that staff requested.  Mr. Jessee explained that there are sufficient dollars 
budgeted in the contingency budget to cover this increase. 

Mr. Jessee recommended approval of Change Order No. 28 in the amount 
of $168,445. 

Philip W. Wagner inquired as to whether the project is still on track in 
terms of a completion date.  Mr. Jessee responded that there have been 
delays due to issues with the incinerator. 

Motion by Koryzno to approve Change Order No. 28 in the amount of 
$168,445.  Support by Wagner.  In favor: All.  Opposed: None. (Motion 
carried) 

D. Fund Balance Report - Larry R. Thomas 

Mr. Thomas directed the Board’s attention to the Fund Balance Report.  
He then proceeded to give a detailed report of the information contained in 
the report and answered questions from the Board. 

Informational only; no motion from the Board required. 

E. Financial Report – Authority Net Assets - Larry R. Thomas 



BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
May 23, 2006 
Page 4 
 
 
 

Mr. Thomas directed the Board’s attention to the Financial Report – 
Authority Net Assets Reports for April.  He then proceeded to give a 
detailed report of the information contained in the reports and answered 
questions from the Board. 

Edward B. Koryzno, Jr. inquired as to whether the $2.6 million loss is 
something to be concerned about, particularly with respect to bonding 
agencies and with a rate increase next year.  Mr. Thomas responded that 
he is not entirely certain and that, generally, bonding companies want to 
make sure that there is sufficient income to pay the bond payments that 
become due.  He indicated that, when they make their analysis, they 
remove the depreciation because it should be used for those payments. 

Informational only; no motion from the Board required. 

F. Usage Report – Consumption Report - Larry R. Thomas 

Mr. Thomas directed the Board’s attention to the Consumption Report.  
He then proceeded to give a detailed report of the information contained in 
the reports and answered questions from the Board. 

Mr. Thomas pointed out that Powertrain’s year-to-date usage is much 
reduced as expected due to decreased usage as well as problems with their 
meter.  Larry J. Doe inquired as to whether they can be re-billed once the 
meter has been repaired.  Mr. Thomas indicated that there is no 
mechanism in place at the Authority, except in the case of the contract 
community agreements, for retroactive billing but the possibility is there 
to negotiate something. 

He also advised that there are issues with the Pittsfield Township meters 
and that staff is continuing to investigate the situation.  T. Michael Jessee 
interjected that the problems began when the new Pittsfield station was put 
online.  He stated that the next procedure that may be instituted is to close 
the valve to the new station and verify that the station is still receiving 
water.  Mr. Jessee explained that it is possible that there is an underground 
bypass that YCUA is not aware of.  He assured the Board that staff will 
continue to research the problem until it is resolved. 

Edward B. Koryzno, Jr. commented that he appreciates the work put into 
this report but that he finds it confusing.  He suggested the possibility of 
presenting it along with a summary memo in the future. 

Larry J. Doe inquired as to whether Powertrain’s water is contained.  Mr. 
Thomas responded that they return as sewage only a fraction of the water 
they take in. 

Informational only; no motion from the Board required. 

G. Director’s Report - Larry R. Thomas 

There was no director’s report for the month. 



BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
May 23, 2006 
Page 5 
 
 
 
4. OLD BUSINESS: 

There was no old business for the month. 

5. OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business for the month. 

6. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS:  Motion by Koryzno to pay the bills in the amount of 
$2,287,987.47 plus an addendum in the amount of $3,727,380.71.  Support by Scott.  In 
favor: All.  Opposed: None.  (Motion carried.) 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Perry M. Thomas updated the Board on what staff has been 
doing in terms of odor control at the wastewater treatment plant.  He addressed changes 
in the telephone auto attendant, odor complaint form, and also the work being done in 
terms of equipment performance testing. 

Larry J. Doe inquired as to whether an actual person answers when customers chose the 
odor complaint option.  Mr. Jessee responded that, during normal business hours, the #3 
option goes directly to a staff member and that, after hours, callers are instructed to 
connect to the control room in order to speak with an operator and place an odor 
complaint. 

Edward B. Koryzno, Jr. inquired as to whether staff is receiving any special training to 
deal sensitively and in an informed manner when dealing with emotional customers.  Mr. 
Jessee responded that there has been no training given in this area and that some 
instruction is a great idea.  Mr. Doe interjected that it might not be a bad idea for YCUA 
staff to attend the neighborhood watch meetings and give the residents an update. 

Perry M. Thomas advised that staff is logging wind directions, temperature, and weather 
conditions in relationship to the volume of odor complaints.  Philip W. Wagner added 
that there are computer modeling programs available that can show air current patterns 
based on local weather station conditions. 

8. ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by Wagner to adjourn the meeting at 4:40 p.m.  Support by 
Scott.  In favor: All.  Opposed: None.  (Motion carried) 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
MARK NAMATEVS, Secretary/Treasurer 

 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000500044004600206587686353ef901a8fc7684c976262535370673a548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200208fdb884c9ad88d2891cf62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef653ef5728684c9762537088686a5f548c002000700072006f006f00660065007200204e0a73725f979ad854c18cea7684521753706548679c300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020b370c2a4d06cd0d10020d504b9b0d1300020bc0f0020ad50c815ae30c5d0c11c0020ace0d488c9c8b85c0020c778c1c4d560002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken voor kwaliteitsafdrukken op desktopprinters en proofers. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


